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The Somerset School and Carnegie Library are located in the 300 block of College
Street in Somerset, the seat of government for Pulaski County. Facing southwest,

the complex is situated three blocks northeast of Main Street and the commercial
downtown area. On the west side of College Street, facing the school and library, are
residences, and one block to the south is the city hall, A modern elementary school
has been built on the property immediately northeast of the school and library, and

a brick, single-story structure just to the north of the complex is also part of this
new school.

The complex consists of four sections (see photo 1) with the original one being the
central block constructed in 1902-03 for the combined use of the elementary and high
school. The Carnegie Library was added to the north in 1906, and ca. 1912, a

high school wing was added to the south of the original block. In the 1930s, the
final section was appended to the extreme southern end of the complex.

Constructed of brick with stone trim, the 1902-03 block exemplifies the Victorian

Romanesque style, featuring a square, central tower and adjoining gabled sections
(see photo 2). Set within the high stone foundation at the base of the tower, the
main entrance is surmounted by a round arch consisting of rows of brick headers.

Two pairs of single-pane sash windows with stone sills and heads pierce the second
and third levels of the tower. Above the upper windows are two round, blind arches.
Polygonal brick buttresses with stone bands strengthen the corners of the upper
portion of the tower which is pierced by wide, round arch openings also composed

of brick headers. A simple cornice with dentils, surmounted by a pyramidal roof
with finial, completes the tower.

Slightly recessed from the tower are the adjoining sections which have gabled
parapets. The gable peaks are pierced by small, round arch windows and adorned with
stone stringcourses. The main portion of the facade of each section curves outward
and in this convex projection are two rows of single-pane, sash windows, Above and
below the windows are strips of copper facing, The entire projection is capped by

a wide brick arch with stone trim. The same treatment is found on the sides and
rear of this block.

Built in the Classic Revival style by G. W. Ashley who is thought to have been a

local architect, the Carnegie Library (see photo 3) adjoins the original block on
the north. This brick building, resting on a stone foundation, is five bays wide
and two stories tall with a high basement, The central bay projects slightly from
the facade. Paired Ionic columns supporting a denticulated entablature characterize
the portico. A shouldered architrave surrounds the double, glass—paneled doors and
rectangular transom. Single-pane, sash windows pierce the facade. A wooden cornice
with dentil work surrounds the structure and above this is a brick parapet. Ca.
1934, a one-story, brick reading room was added to the rear of the library (see
photo 4). This wing carefully retains the overall axchitectural character of the
original library building.,

(continued)
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G. W. Ashley (Carnegie Library)

The complex composing the Somerset School and Carnegie Library represents the oldest
surviving public institutional building in Somerset. In addition, the Somerset
Carnegie Library, believed to be the first conmnected with a public school anywhere

in the United States, was also the first library to serve the community. The school
carries social significance as well in serving as the meeting place, for several years,
of the local Chautauqua society. Several prominent persons were educated at the
school who have since gained state, national, and even international renown.Archi-
tecturally, the Somerset School and Carnegie Library complex is significant as it
denotes both a noteworthy example of the Victorian Romanesque collegiate building
tradition and also represents Somerset's involvement in the Classic Revival which
characterized American public building in the first quarter of the twentieth century.
Given the fact that Somerset was, at the turn of the century and remains a small town,
this substantial grouping of public structures assumes a prominent position in the
architectural heritage of the community.

The city school system of Somerset, Kentucky, became one of the early leaders in
public education in Kentucky. Created as one of the "graded districts" by an act of
the General Assembly in 1888, the following year the new school system erected a new
building on the site of the '"Masonic College Property."l Only 100 high schools

in the state were organized under this law.2 The building burned in 1902, to be
replaced by the present structure.

Although Kentucky began to make greater strides in public education during the
twentieth century as the result of new school support statutes enacted by the General
Assembly in 1908 and 1914,3 Somerset was ahead of these laws and by 1913 its high
school was accredited as Class A, which placed it among the few public high

schools that were evaluated by the State College Association.4

According to the minutes of various school board meetings held during 1904-1907, the
Trustees of the Somerset Public Graded Schools were able to secure a contribution of
$10,000 from Andrew Carnegie toward the construction of a new public library building
on these premises with the provision that at least $1,000 was to be spent annually
by the Board for the library afterwards.”

(continued)
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To the south of the original block is the high school wing (see photo 5), constructed
approximately six years after the Carnegie Library and obviously designed to

complement that structure. The only difference between the two buildings is that

the high school is nine bays wide rather than five as is the library. A one-story,
concrete gymnasium was added to the rear of the high school wing during the 1930s.

The 1930s wing on the south end of the complex is a three-story, rectangular, brick
block eight bays in width (see photo 5). Nine-over-nine, double-hung sash windows
pierce the facade. The portion adjoining the high school is slightly recessed and
contains the entrance, an arched passage, vaguely reminiscent of the round arches
employed in the original section.

In recent years, due to the erection of newer facilities, the only portion of the
older area of the complex that remains in use is the high school wing. As a result,
the abandoned Carnegie Library and the 1902-03 section have been allowed to fall
into disrepair. In both of these sections, however, the original hardwood floors
and woodwork remain intact. In the central section (1902-03), a high wainscoting
of vertical, batten boards exists throughout the corridors. Ceilings are approx-
imately sixteen feet high in both buildings, and the library retains elaborate,
pressed tin ceilings on both the first and second floors. The second floor of the
library originally consisted of one room with a small stage. This has now been
partitioned into two smaller rooms, each retaining a portion of the stage.

In the high school wing where classes continue to meet, there is a large auditorium
which, at one time, served the entire student body. The stage, flanked by
pilasters with Ionic capitals (see photo 6), has been preserved as have the original
seats which display an interesting Art Deco design on the end of each row.

The 1930s addition at the southern end of the complex continues in use as an
educational facility and is well maintained.

Included within the nominated area is a small structure to the rear of the high school
wing which houses a press box used during athletic events.
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The local Chatauqua Society also contributed $300 toward the furnishing of the first
floor of the building, was duly recognized for this, and was also given permission
to use the building for their meetings. Carnegie's grant was made on December 8,
1905, one of several made in the United States during that year.6 Both the school
superintendent, Dr. J. P. W. Brouse,/ and the Chatauqua Society,8 have been given
credit for bringing about this contribution.

Ca.1912, another section of this building was constructed to be used as a high
school building and a more modern wing was added during the decade beginning in 1931.

Throughout the long period that this complex has served in its educational and
cultural capacities, several prominent Kentuckians who have gained international

reputations received their early training there.? Several distinguished alumni
of the Somerset Public Schools included the following:

The Honorable John Sherman Cooper (Jr.)
Former U.S. Senator, U. S. Ambassador to India, U.S. Ambassador to
East Germany, American Representative to the United Nations

The Honorable Edwin P. Morrow
Governor of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (1919-1923)

Arthur W. Allen, M.D.

Internationally known surgeon, President of the American College of
Surgeons, Knights's Cross, Royal Order of St. Olaf, Norway, Fellow
of the Royal Colleges of Surgeons, England and Scotland

Lewis Ware
American Representative to the Guggenheim Foundation,
President, International Minerals and Chemicals Corporation.

At the present time consideration is being given by the local school system and
relevant state agencies to the conversion of the ab&andoned section of this
complex into a facility which can be utilized bg approximately 150 residents

of Oakwood, a state mental health institution.l

Overall the complex presents a pleasing facade to the passerby. The Romanesque
central section and the flanking Classic Revival wings blend to form a unified,
symmetrical composite. The last addition, dating from the 1930s, was constructed
in such a manner so as not to detract from the existing edifice.
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front page. Also see Pulaski County Deed Book 22, p. 530.

2Frank LeRond McVey, The Gates Open Slowly: A History of Education in
Kentucky (Lexington, University of Kentucky Press, 1949), p. 264,

BIbid., PP. 239-240. Also see "State of Kentucky," A Cyclopedia of Education,
Vol. III (New York, the Macmillan Co.), pp. 594-595.
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[Barksdale Hamlett] for the Two Years Ending June 30, 1915 (Frankfort, The
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American Public Library Development (Chicago, American Library Association, 1969),
pp. 236-237.
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9Letter from Maxine Hillis, Secretary, Pulaski County Historical Society,
April 25, 1978.
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The nominated area is bounded on the north by an alleyway, on the east by the school
yard and recreation area, on the south by Hawkins Street, and on the west by College
Street. Starting at the point where the alleyway meets College St., the boundary

line runs southeast along the east side of College St. for approximately 900 feet.

The line then turns eastward, following the north side of Hawkins St. for approximately
100 feet. The line turns eastward again for approximately 200 feet, then turns
northwest for approximately 700 feet, and finally turns westward following the

south side of the alleyway for approximately 400 feet to the original point.



